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The HCI Foundation

Our approach to social challenges is cemented in the hope and 
confidence that we have in our people, our communities, our country 
and our future.
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About the Foundation

“What is the driving force behind the work of the 
Foundation?”

“ The need to do something about the 
overwhelming social challenges that we face 
in South Africa”
The HCI Foundation is the vehicle for the social investment
programme of Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited (HCI).
HCI is an investment holding company that has invested in
a range of sectors including hotels and leisure, media
and broadcasting, gaming, food and beverages,  engineering
and construction, mining, and information technology. 
Over the last decade HCI has grown into one of the few 
medium-sized black empowered companies on the JSE.

During the last four years the HCI Foundation has contributed 
towards the improvement of the lives of South Africans in need - 
including employees of subsidiary companies and associates of 
the HCI Group.

In 2008 the Foundation’s  four primary areas of focus
have been on education, development, health, and welfare.
Its flagship programme is the national Bursary Programme
through which more than 1,000 students at higher learning
institutions throughout South Africa receive bursaries.
Other key national programmes of the Foundation are the
Early Childhood Development Programme and the Housing
Development Programme.

As the custodian of the social responsibility priorities of the HCI 
Group, as well as an independent Trust with a capital base of over 
R400m, the HCI Foundation regards social investment as both 
a corporate responsibility and as an altruistic voluntary practice.  

The Foundation’s 2008 annual report outlines the CSI 
programme of HCI, its commitment to development, social 
change and poverty reduction.
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Board of Trustees

Virginia is the Executive Chairperson of the HCI Foundatio. Previously 
she was the co-ordinator of the Southern African Clothing and Textile 
Workers Union (SACTWU) social welfare programme and the private 
secretary to Former President Nelson R. Mandela during his last two 
years in office. She is a non-executive director of Golden Arrow Bus 
Services and HCI Ltd. She organised for the Southern African Clothing 
and Textile Workers Union and the Food and Canning Workers Union. 
Virginia holds two teachers diplomas.

John joined Hosken Consolidated Investment Limited as chief executive 
officer in 1997. From 1974 he was General Secretary of various 
unions in the Clothing and Textile Industry before becoming a Member 
of Parliament in 1994. He is a non-executive chairman of e.tv. and 
Tsogo Sun Holdings. He holds a BA (Hons) and B.Proc. 

Peter previously served on the board of Golden Arrow Foundation.   
He is currently a member of the bursary committee and the finance 
committee of the HCI Foundation, as well as serving on the Cape Town 
Public Transport Museum working committee. He has been employed 
by the Golden Arrow Bus Services for the past 37 years. He served in 
the Transport Omnibus Workers Union for the past 37 years and 33 
years as an exco member.

John is the Corporate Development Manager of Golden Arrow Bus 
Services. His corporate experience has been in the mining, petroleum, 
manufacturing and service sectors. He holds a B.Social Sciences degree 
from UCT and an MBA from the Maastricht School of Management.

Marcel joined Hosken Consolidated Investment Limited as chairman 
in 1997. Prior to this he was a Member of Parliament and Deputy 
Secretary of the National Union of Mineworkers. He is also chief 
executive officer of e.tv, chairman of Johnnic Holdings Limited and holds 
directorships in numerous companies. He holds a BA (Hon) degree 
from the University of Cape Town.

Virginia Engel
EXECUTIVE CHAIRPERSON

Peter Abrahams

John Copelyn

John Dammert

Marcel Golding
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Board of Trustees

Elias joined the Foundation in 2004. He is an executive director of 
Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited, chief executive of Vukani 
Gaming Corporation and chairman of Golden Arrow Bus Services. He 
serves on numerous boards as a director including e.tv, Tsogo Sun 
Holdings Limited and Clover Industries Limited. Prior to joining HCI 
he served as national organiser at the Southern African Clothing and 
Textile Union and chief negotiator of the Clothing Bargaining Council.

Mathebe is the general manager of Human Resources and 
Administration for e.tv. Before joining e.tv she was assistant to the 
Director at the Masibambane Trust and prior to that she worked at 
Pick and Pay for 14 years, growing through the ranks and reaching the 
level of Human Resource Officer. Mathebe belongs to a women’s club 
which inter alia provides assistance to underprivileged children. She 
holds diplomas in Human Resources and Project Management.

Kevin has been the  Chief Finance Officer and Group Secretary of HCI 
since 2001. He joined the HCI Group in 1997.  He  holds directorships 
in  several HCI subsidiaries.  He was appointed as a Trustee of the HCI 
Foundation this year. 

Yunis is an attorney of the High Court and is presently in private 
practice. He is a former Deputy General Secretary of the Southern 
African Clothing and Textile Workers Union, a director of the Natal 
Worker’s College and has served as the Senior Commissioner to the 
CCMA in KwaZulu Natal. He was appointed to the board of HCI as a 
non-executive director in August 2005.

Mandla formerly served as a trustee of the Golden Arrow Foundation. 
He is the chairman of the HCI Foundation bursary committee. Until 
his retirement last year he was the Deputy Vice Chancellor of student 
affairs at the Cape Peninsula University of Technology. He serves 
on several boards including those of social and community-based 
organisations. He received his BA(Hons) in Social Sciences at the 
University of Zululand, his MSW at the University of North Carolina and 
his PhD in Social Work at the University of Pittsburgh.

Velaphi Elias Mphande

Mathebe Nkonyane

Kevin Govender

Yunis Shaik

Mandla Tshabalala (Prof)
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Members of Staff

Solveig is the HCI Foundation Regional Manager for the Gauteng, 
Mpumalanga, Limpopo, North West and KwaZulu-Natal provinces. 
Previously she was the Special Projects Manager for e.tv. Prior 
to this she was the Director of the Masimbambane Trust. Solveig 
worked for Southern African Clothing and Textile Workers Union for 
a number of years in the 80’s.

Nizaam is the Accounting Officer for the HCI Foundation. He is also 
the co-ordinator for the Foundation’s Bus Discount Programme. 
Previously he was the Bookkeeper for Golden Arrow Bus Services, 
Sibanye Bus Services, Multinet, and Baakens Holding. Nizaam is 
currently completing a B.Compt Degree at UNISA.

Geraldine joined the HCI Foundation last year as Bursary Programme 
Manager. Previously she was the Social Development Manager and 
Acting Managing Director for The Big Issue in Cape Town. Geraldine 
is a qualified Social Worker with 20 years of professional experience 
in the field of social development.

Virginia Engel
EXECUTIVE CHAIRPERSON

AND TRUSTEE

Solveig Piper
REGIONAL MANAGER

Nizaam Manuel
ACCOUNTING OFFICER

Geraldine Machin
BURSARY PROGRAMME 

MANAGER

Virginia is the Executive Chairperson and Trustee of the HCI 
Foundation. Previously she was the co-ordinator of the Southern 
African Clothing and Textile Workers Union (SACTWU) social 
welfare programme and the private secretary to Former President 
Nelson R. Mandela during his last two years in office. She is a non-
executive director of Golden Arrow Bus Services and HCI Ltd. She 
organised for the Southern African Clothing and Textile Workers 
Union and the Food and Canning Workers Union, Virginia holds two 
teachers diplomas.
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Members of Staff

Gabbey is the Front Desk Officer for the HCI Foundation. She is also the 
travel and events co-ordinator for the Foundation. Previously she was 
Fundraiser for the Saint Giles Association for the Physically Disabled. 
She has also worked for Help South Africa Now.

Zanethemba is the General Administrative Assistant for the HCI 
Foundation and Co-ordinator for the Foundation’s Bus Discount 
Programme. Previously he was the Maintenance Security Officer for 
e.tv. Zanethemba holds certificates in security and public relations.

Berenice joined the HCI Foundation as Administrator: Social 
Programmes. Previously she was the Finance Administrator for the 
Development Action Group. She has more than 20 years administration 
experience in the non-government sector. Berenice holds a  
diploma in bookkeeping.

Gabbey Jacobs
FRONT DESK OFFICER

Zanethemba Mguga
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

ASSISTANT

Berenice Eckhardt
ADMINISTRATOR

SOCIAL PROGRAMMES
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The year at a glance

... positively impacting South Africa’s social landscape
is a gradual process of development.
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The year at a glance - Review

Review
The last year has had significant challenges for the Foundation. We increased our social spend 
by more than 100% on the previous year. Significantly, the areas of spend were more focused 
than previously. Generally the amount spent on associations with hundreds of Non-Government 
Organisations (NGOs) with whom the Foundation has built relations in the past were kept fairly flat 
and the extra money was used in areas that were identified by the trustees as those central focus 
areas that we should be trying to develop.   
 
The heart of this has been growing the National Bursary Programme, both in the amount per 
bursary and the number of bursaries offered. We are gradually spreading our funding for bursaries 
more evenly across the country. In doing so, hopefully we are also raising awareness among people 
who work in businesses of the HCI Group about the availability of bursaries for their dependants.
 
A second focus area was on the scourge of HIV/Aids, where we spent over R3m. In truth, although 
we did good work, we are still finding our feet in this space and hopefully next year will allow us to 
refine our input more meaningfully.
 
We also tackled the area of the provision of Reconstruction and Development Programme (RDP) 
housing for the first time. Again this area has the capacity to consume vast amounts of money and 
we are still searching for the most effective ways to contribute. We have, however, built up useful 
partnerships with NGOs who are committed to building RDP housing and we have facilitated the 
building of the first 50 homes by these groups. Hopefully this will prove to be a good start and next 
year will see the Foundation facilitating the building of significantly more homes.
 
The HCI Foundation entered a partnership with the Centre for Early Childhood Development which is 
aimed at reducing the debilitating impact of poverty on Early Childhood Development (ECD). The ECD 
programme covers a wide range of interventions at 51 ECD centres nationally. 
 
We believe that this programme has many positive effects on the lives of children. It has helped to 
create stable centres, conducive to learning for young children; providing access to nutritional food 
and better early learning material and equipment; developing the skills of teachers; and helping to 
implement structures that comply with the standards set by the social service department, which 
in turn has enabled the centres to claim government ECD subsidies and become sustainable.
We further believe that our support of ECD will create the opportunity for young children to have a 
better chance to succeed at school and in life in general.
 
The Foundation has also developed partnerships with various subsidiaries and associates within the 
HCI Group, which hopefully provide a meaningful helping hand in the social projects that they are 
running and developing.
 
Generally our year has seen a great boost to the work of the Foundation and a considerable 
deepening of its impact in the Group.
 
According to the Trialogue CSI Handbook Vol. 10, our annual budget falls within the top 20% of 
corporations in South Africa. It also ranked us in the top 30 companies most widely recognised by 
Non-Profit Organisations (NPOs) for CSI activities and for being good corporate grantmakers.
 
However, we realise that positive social impact cannot be measured in Rand spend alone. We have 
also tried to strengthen our endeavours to ascertain whether our investments have contributed 
towards the sustainable improvement of the quality of people’s lives. This is the primary challenge 
for the Foundation in the coming years. 
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National bursary programme
As a community and national resource, the HCI Foundation Bursary Programme 
provides flexible options to students to help them meet their personal and educational 
needs. The bursary programme is designed to facilitate and enhance educational 
opportunities for the higher education of disadvantaged students. 

The HCI Foundation Bursary Programme presently assists 1,136 students nationally 
at higher education level. An amount of R10 million is budgeted for this purpose. Due 
to national expansion of the programme, the budget has been extended to meet the 
increasing demand for academic assistance, as well as to accommodate the increase 
in tuition fees at institutions of higher learning (page 22).

Early childhood development
The HCI Foundation is committed to supporting a coherent, integrated, sustainable 
Early Childhood Development (ECD) Programme nationally. One of our key ECD 
partnerships is with the Centre for Early Childhood Development. 

Working with eight partners across South Africa, the centre has trained 258 
ECD educators to manage an Early Childhood Development programme and it has 
equipped 51 ECD centres with educational equipment and learning resources.
It has  already assisted most of these centres to register with the Department 
of Social Development and to access the government ECD subsidy. In total these 
programmes have provided quality early learning for 3,000 children, and contributed 
towards the sustainability of the individual ECD centres (page 26).

Facilitating and enhancing educational opportunities

The year at a glance - Highlights
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“Our revolving fund enables project developers to kick start the
construction of government approved RDP housing development”

The year at a glance - Highlights

Housing development 
The HCI Foundation entered into a partnership with the Khulani Housing Association 
and Ukhanyo Housing Development to help facilitate the construction of housing units 
in Gugulethu in the Western Cape.

Our pilot housing project funded the construction of 10 demonstration houses. The 
two-bedroom houses are 40 square meters in size each with a bathroom, an open-
plan kitchen and lounge. They are fully plastered, have tiled roofs, insulated ceilings, 
aluminium windows, gutters, electricity, and water heating.

We plan to increase the number of houses that are provided for families who have 
patiently been waiting for the shacks in which they live to be replaced by proper houses. 
Through the HCI Revolving Housing Fund, we are also facilitating the construction of 
a further 250 state subsidised houses in the Western Cape. Phase one of the build 
of 250 houses is in progress.  

The HCI Revolving Housing Fund enables the project developers to have access to a 
revolving monetary fund that kickstarts the construction of housing projects where 
government has approved developments. Over the last year the Foundation has 
contributed over R3 million to housing (page 35).

Partnerships
One of the Foundation’s priorities is to establish meaningful partnerships with 
subsidiary and associate companies of the HCI Group, and to enhance their 
social projects. While existing joint initiatives continued to prosper, the Foundation 
entered into a number of new partnerships with subsidiary companies. We also 
facilitated subsidiary company collaboration on specific projects (page 54).
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Financials
The Executive Chairperson of the Foundation serves on the HCI 
Board with the special responsibility of ensuring a significant amount  
of the Board’s attention is focused on the work of the Foundation.  
With its own budget and a capital base of over R400 million, the HCI 
Foundation is an independent Trust. A number of the Foundation’s 
trustees are also Directors of the HCI Board, which is responsible  
for the appointment of trustees.

The ultimate impact of the Foundation’s social development programmes 
depends largely on the commitment, efficiency and dedication of its 
people.

Our Board of Trustees has been a great source of support to the 
Foundation and includes members who have made substantial 
independent contributions towards the transformation of disadvantaged 
communities in South Africa.

Our committed members of staff have also been pivotal to the successful 
fulfilment of our objectives. We thank trustees, staff and friends of the 
Foundation for their ongoing dedication to social development.

The year at a glance - Financials

Trustees of the HCI Foundation
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The year at a glance - Preview

The year ahead
Important lessons have been learned over the past year and we are 
mindful that the coming year brings a new set of challenges.

There are so many developmental entry points where the Foundation 
can make a substantive difference in the lives of people and we regard 
education as the main tool for social and economic transformation in 
South Africa.

Priority will be given to the acquisition of critical skills and knowledge, and 
every effort will be made to effectively navigate the Foundation and its 
partners into a new era of social investment thinking and practice.  

The largest portion of our funding is already allocated to bursaries for 
tertiary and further education and other educational programmes such 
as Early Childhood Development in pre-schools and improving numeracy 
and literacy capabilities through teacher training and programmes of 
excellence. In this way we hope to address as best we can the challenges 
faced by the education system and ultimately the future of the country.

By deepening our understanding of social development, the Foundation 
will be able to pursue its stated objectives with commitment, drive and 
dedication in order to become a meaningful socio-economic contributor 
to development in South Africa.

“After climbing a great hill, one only finds that
there are many more hills to climb.”
– Nelson Mandela
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 SOCIAL PROGRAMMES
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Social programmes

The Foundation has committed to significantly investing in education because of the unquestionable long-term impact on 
the lives of beneficiaries and ultimately on society. We have also invested in the development, health and welfare needs 
of poor people in order to try to alleviate some of the hardships faced by the developing communities of a country in 
transition.

“Our deepest fear is not that we are inadequate. Our deepest fear is that we are 
powerful beyond measure. It is our light, not our darkness that most frightens us.”
– Marianne Williamson

Social Programmes Spend and Spread
2008

Education
48.8 %

Health
17.5%

Welfare
9.3%

Development
24.3%

Annual Spend Comparison: Social Programmes

Areas of Focus

F 2007
F 2008
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EducationEDUCATION



F o u n d a t i o n  A n n u a l  R e p o r t22

0

R 3 000 000

R 6 000 000

R 9 000 000

R 12 000 000

R 15 000 000

Bursary
Programme

ECD
Programme

Total

“Education either functions as an instrument which is used to facilitate 
integration of the younger generation into the logic of the present system 
and bring about conformity or it becomes the practice of freedom, the means by 
which men and women deal critically and creatively with reality and discover 
how to participate in the transformation of their world.”
– Paulo Freire

National bursary programme
Serving as the cornerstone of our commitment to social development, the HCI Foundation Bursary Programme assists 
hundreds of young South Africans to realise their potential and achieve the dreams to which they aspire.  

The HCI Foundation Bursary Programme has become the national flagship programme of the HCI Foundation. It is one of 
the only bursary schemes available that does not confine itself to a specific educational courses and other employment 
orientated education. While the Foundation recognises the link between education and better jobs, it believes the key is 
to help people achieve their dreams rather than to pigeonhole them in a specific line of study.

We are committed to linking students with powerful opportunities to raise their educational levels as well as identifying 
and responding to the changing needs of local people.

As a community and national resource, the HCI Foundation Bursary Programme provides flexible options to students 
to help them meet their personal and educational needs. The bursary programme is recognised for facilitating and 
enhancing educational opportunities for the higher education of disadvantaged students. 

The 2008 programme assists 1,136 students nationally at higher education level. An amount of R10 million is budgeted 
for this purpose. As awareness about the programme has developed, the budget has been extended to meet the 
increasing demand for academic assistance, as well as to accommodate the increase in tuition fees at institutions of 
higher learning. 

Bursary
Programme

79.5%

ECD
Programme

20.5%

Education - National bursary programme

Annual Spend Comparison: Education

Education Areas of Focus

F 2007
F 2008



23F o u n d a t i o n  A n n u a l  R e p o r t

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Western
Cape

Gauteng KZN EC, MP
Other

Unisa Total

533
415

140 132 90
175

91

400

14

854

1136

0

The year in review
The Foundation spent almost R11 million on its bursary scheme for the year. The scheme remained focused on tertiary 
education, centred on supporting university students, but with strong support for technical universities and at a more 
modest level providing support for college students studying trades.

Key to the challenges addressed by the bursary scheme last year, was to continue to transform itself from the essentially 
Western Cape base it had when operating as the Golden Arrow Foundation, into a national scheme of the HCI Foundation.
While there is more to be done, we have achieved a spread of students where the Western Cape Region has gradually 
declined to some 37% of bursaries awarded. Key areas in which we expanded were KwaZulu-Natal, the Eastern Cape 
and other provinces. 

This change has been accompanied by a supplementary increase, from 854 to 1136 in the total number of students to 
whom bursaries were awarded. This has allowed us to transform the bursary scheme steadily into a national scheme 
which has substantial relationships with most large tertiary institutions across the country, without withdrawing support 
for any students in the Western Cape.

The allocation of the 2008 bursaries remained tied to financial need rather than academic excellence of the recipients.  
Likewise the allocation remained free of pressurising students to study particular academic courses or any connection 
with work obligations after completion of study. The bursary fund also continued solely as a grant making fund rather 
than providing loans.

In light of the fact that we were targeting students whose families could not easily afford to pay for their tertiary 
education, it was felt that we should increase the percentage of the fees that the bursary would cover. We believe it is 
important for recipients to have to pay at least a portion of their fees and we will continue to refine our thinking on what 
this proportion should be as we go forward.

One key decision made by the bursary fund was to provide up to 20 bursaries to foreign nationals with official status 
as refugees. In general this is an area that has not been addressed by any other bursary funds and an omission that 
required our intervention. We offered these bursaries through the offices of the United Nations High Commissioner for 
Refugees and by working through local implementation partners.

We are also happy to report that the number of bursaries awarded to children of employees within subsidiaries and 
associates of the HCI Group continued to grow significantly from 80 to 123. It is our hope that the scheme will over time 
be used more widely by families who contribute to the creation of the business of HCI.

Bursaries Issued by Province

Province

Education - National bursary programme

2007 Bursaries
2008 Bursaries
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Class of 2007
Annual spend on the HCI Foundation Bursary Programme for the 2007 academic year was R6.1m for 854 students.

2007 Spend by province

Class of 2008
Annual spend on the HCI Foundation Bursary Programme for the 2008 academic year was R9.6m for 1,136
students.

2008 Spend by province

Total bursary recipients increased by 282 students to 1,136 for the 2008 academic year.  This represents a pro-
gramme growth of 33% since last year.  

2008 Spend by institution type

The number of institutions being worked with nationally increased from 30 in 2007 to 37 for the 2008 academic year.  
 
Subsidiary company bursaries

Bursaries awarded to children of employees of subsidiary companies of the HCI Group saw a significant increase of 
49% compared to those awarded last year.

Western Cape Gauteng KZN
Eastern Cape, 
Mpumalanga 

Other
Total

Bursars 533 140 90 91 854

Rand spend R4 254 060 R864 025 R484 435 R522 326 R6 124 846

Spread 69.5% 14.1% 7.9% 8.5% 100%

Western Cape Gauteng KZN
Eastern Cape,  
Mpumalanga,

Other
Unisa Total

Bursars 415 132 175 400 14 1,136

Rand spend R4 797 515 R1 321 109 R1 522 213 R3 285 000 R43 132 R10 968 949

Spread 43.7% 12% 16% 29.9% 0.4% 100%

Institution type No of students Spend % of budget

Universities 678 R7 332 588 66.8%

UOTs 349 R3 088 309 28.2%

FET / Colleges 109 R548 052 5.0%

Total 1,136 R10 968 949 100%

Company 2007 Bursaries Allocated 2008 Bursaries Allocated

BSG 0 0

Clover 28 33

e.tv 1 9

Formex 0 0

GABS 32 40

Mettle 0 6

Syntell 0 1

Tsogo Sun Group 19 20

Total 80 109

Education - National bursary programme
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2009 challenges
The coming year will see our bursary scheme concentrating on deepening our relationships with the educational institutions 
through which our bursary recipients study. We intend to focus on ensuring that mentoring and other social assistance 
is available to our recipients, and we hope to begin measuring systematically the performance of our students against 
national averages.

This involves computerising our database and developing mechanisms to align our IT system to those of the educational 
institutions with whom we deal, in order to communicate more effectively with bursary recipients and their institutions 
of study.

Investing in education 
has a significant long-term 
impact on the lives of
individuals and ultimately 
on society.

Education - Bursary programme
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Early Childhood Development (ECD) refers to the process 
through which young children (to the age of 9) grow and 
flourish socially, physically, mentally, emotionally, spiritually 
and morally. The current generation of children will become 
the citizens of tomorrow. Theirs is the generation that 
will form the foundation of a productive and responsible 
society.  

The Foundation’s ECD Programme provides national 
integrated support to grassroots interventions through 
base education.  With a sustained holistic approach and the 
active participation of parents and caregivers, successful 
early childhood development is one of the most effective 
means of positively impacting children’s prospects for the 
future.

Centre for Early Childhood Development

“The difference we would like make, through the daycare 
and aftercare centres, is to capacitate our community 
to provide development opportunities for our children so 
that they may grow into responsible adults”.
- programme participant from Dennegeur, Franschoek in 
the Western Cape

The Foundation’s primary ECD partnership is with the 
Centre for Early Childhood Development. Working with 
eight partners across South Africa, the Centre has trained 
258 ECD educators how to manage an Early Childhood 
Development programme; equipped 51 ECD centres 
with educational equipment and learning resources; 
and is assisting all the ECD centres to register with the 

Department of Social Development in order for them 
to obtain government ECD subsidies. In total these 
programmes have provided quality early learning for 3,000 
children.

Grassroots Educare Trust
in partnership with GABS

The Grassroots Educare Trust facilitates access to quality 
early childhood development opportunities for young 
children from disadvantaged areas in the Western Cape.  

The GABS Adventure Bus Programme forms an integral 
part of the Trust’s work.  For over 30 years a committed 
group of Golden Arrow Bus Drivers have unselfishly given 
of their free time to brighten the lives of pre-school children 
of the Grassroots Educare Trust.  The HCI Foundation 
contributes an average annual grant of R150 000 which 
enables 9 buses to transport children on adventure bus 
outings 3 days per week.  

For many of the more than 20,000 children who enjoyed 
Grassroots outings this year, it was their first such 
opportunity to visit venues such as the N1 City Wonderland 
Game Centre, the Mini Blue Train at Mouille Point, Jimmy 
Jungles in Claremont, the Waterfront Boat Ride, Philippi 
Adventure Farm and Monkey Town, as well as visits to 
various beaches around the Cape Peninsula.

Early childhood development

Education - Early childhood development

The current generation of children will
become the citizens of tomorrow.
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Junior Traffic Training Centre
in partnership with Syntell and GABS

The Junior Traffic Training Centre in Ottery, Western Cape 
was opened in February 2008. The Centre is a road safety 
initiative for young learners and plays a significant role in the 
City of Cape Town’s Traffic Services Road Safety Education 
Campaign.  

Designed to empower 24,000 learners from 200 
schools annually, the centre caters primarily for Grade 1 - 3
learners and aims to create road safety awareness in 
an intellectually stimulating environment. Children are 
encouraged from an early age to recognise the importance 
of safe and responsible behaviour on our roads.  

In addition, the facility provides programmes such as bicycle 
courses, learner’s licence programmes for Grade 12 
learners and other life skills for young people. A record of 
the History of Road Transport in Cape Town is also planned 
for the centre, which provides a learning experience that 
is intended to enable young people to become responsible 
citizens.

The Junior Traffic Centre is a joint initiative between the 
HCI Foundation, Syntell and GABS. The HCI Foundation 
contributed R280 000, Syntell provided infrastructure, 
additional funding and technical skills and GABS provides 
transportation for learners participating in the centre’s 
programmes.

Little Champs Dinaledi
in partnership with Southern Sun Hotels

“…to enhance the lives of all South Africans through the 
education and development of children in the form of play 
and sport...”
- Little Champs Mission Statement

The Little Champs Sports Academy provides a 
comprehensive sports and lifestyle programme that uses 
advanced coaching methods to promote fundamental life 
skills which facilitate the development of co-ordination, 
character and confidence in children.  

Little Champs achieves this through playful sports - related 
activities, which are incorporated into carefully constructed 
gross motor skills development programmes. At the end 
of a Little Champs programme, each ‘Little Champ’ is 
equipped with motor skills and life skills that give them
self-confidence, agility and poise. 

These skills are transferred to children through various 
different forums (schools, centres, holiday programmes), 
which encourage interaction between children from different 
cultural and socio-economic backgrounds. In partnership 
with Southern Sun Hotels, the HCI Foundation contributed 
R250 000 to Little Champs.

Education - Early childhood development

Children are encouraged from an early 
age to recognise the importance of safe and 
responsible behaviour on our roads. 
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Pebbles Project
in partnership with Vukani
‘Helping children with special needs’

The Pebbles Project was established in 2004 to offer 
support to children in the Western Cape with special 
educational needs, particularly those whose lives have 
been affected by alcohol in some way, or those who are 
suffering from foetal alcohol syndrome.  

If a child, particularly one with special needs of any kind, is 
supported and given the necessary education at an early 
age, they are more likely to achieve more at school, and 
in so doing, are empowered to become educated, well-
adjusted adults.

Pebbles works closely with several wine farm owners 
who support the organisation’s work and assist with the 
upliftment of their farm worker communities and the 
education of the workers’ children. Pebbles also supports 
township crèches in Somerset West and Stellenbosch.

The project has trained 20 crèche teachers, 11 after-
school club teachers and positively impacted the lives of 
over 300 children. In partnership with Vukani, the HCI 
Foundation contributed R250 000 towards the work of 
the project.

Rosen Castle Activity Centre
in partnership with e.tv

e.tv and the HCI Foundation jointly supported a unique early 
childhood development concept at the Rosen Castle Kids 
Activity Centre. As the first centre of its kind in the country, 
it teaches children (aged 5 to 9) self-confidence and life 
skills through role-play, by providing access to fully-functional 
miniature replicas of retail, banking and service outlets.
The outlets are appropriately branded, with the construction 
and development funded by their real-life counterparts.

At the centre children are given the chance to announce 
the day’s news in a mini e.tv broadcasting studio, conduct 
their finances at a mini ABSA bank, support justice at the 
mini courthouse, shop at a mini Pick ‘n Pay, have their 
pet inoculated at a mini animal hospital, ride the miniature 
OTIS lift, or check their electricity consumption at the mini 
Eskom information desk. Children spend time participating 
in controlled situational activities that expose them to the 
fundamental skills involved in modern living.

e.tv provides long-term ongoing maintenance of the mini 
talk show / news studio facility and funds the participation 
costs of 25 school children per term for four terms 
each year. The HCI Foundation contributed R30 000 
towards the initial development of the project and provides 
transport through GABS for participating children from 
underprivileged communities.

SACTWU Edu-peg Project
‘Dedicated to the children of our rainbow nation’

Edu-peg is an early childhood development programme 
which has been owned by the SACTWU Educational Trust 
since 1998. As a registered Section 21 organisation,
Edu-peg has partnered with NGO’s and provincial education 
departments nationally to support teachers and learners 
in need.

Through the use of perceptual activities, which form the 
basis for successful early learning, the Edu-peg programme 
teaches essential language, literacy and numeracy skills 
to young children. The project presently operates in the 
Western Cape, the Eastern Cape, KwaZulu-Natal and 
Botswana.  

In partnership with Vukani, the HCI Foundation contributed 
R450 000 towards the provision of Edu-peg literacy and 
numeracy programmes to more than 200 primary schools 
throughout the country.

Education - Early childhood development
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Development Areas of Focus

Development

The HCI Foundation supports initiatives that allow for social development through exposure to arts, culture, skills
development, sport development, and women and youth empowerment programmes.

“If you have come here because your liberation is bound up with mine,
then let us begin”
– Lily Walkers

Housing
Development

45.8%

Community
Development

41.6 %

Arts
Development

12.6 %

“... encourage an appreciation for
South Africa’s diverse communities...”

F 2007
F 2008
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Arts and culture can be a powerful medium for the delivery of social messages to encourage change, as well as giving 
expression to deep social and personal beliefs, particularly among the youth. Involvement in the arts, whether as an artist 
or through participation in arts and cultural activities as part of an appreciative audience, allows for personal exploration 
and growth that ultimately serves to uplift and enrich disadvantaged communities.  

Within this area of our social investment we concentrate on heritage and culture, local talent and social upliftment.
The HCI Foundation assists arts, heritage and cultural programmes that encourage an appreciation for South Africa’s 
diverse communities and inspire a spirit of national unity.

Baxter Theatre New Audience Project
in partnership with GABS

The Baxter Theatre’s objective is to develop audiences 
for the future. The Baxter Theatre New Audience 
Project provides children and adults from less privileged 
communities in the Western Cape with the opportunity 
to visit the theatre and attend performances and 
festivals. The Theatre celebrated its 30th birthday this 
year, during which Golden Arrow buses transported 
more than 4,000 learners to the theatre to enjoy live 
shows and gain exposure to the performing arts, many 
for the first time.

Cape Town Public Transport Museum
in partnership with GABS

The roots and the routes of public road transport 
go back to the 1860s. GABS has been the most 
significant provider of public bus transport to the people 
of Cape Town for most of this time - a period of over 
two centuries. When HCI acquired GABS in 2004, to 
preserve the organisation’s contribution to the heritage 
of the City of Cape Town, the HCI Foundation undertook 
to establish the Cape Town Transport Museum.  

The HCI Foundation office in Gardens, Cape Town houses 
a small museum collection of artifacts donated by GABS 
pensioners. These include photographs, press cuttings 
and drivers’ uniforms. In 2006, the museum collection 
was one of the key exhibits at the Cape Memory Project 
held at the Concourse Building in Cape Town. In addition, 
the Foundation has produced collector’s documentaries 
about the lives of GABS bus drivers, including interviews 
with GABS pensioners, and the history of public transport 
in the Western Cape.

Franschhoek Community Radio Station
in partnership with e.tv

Although Franschhoek is regarded by many as the 
Wine and Food Capital of the Western Cape, it is also 
a town with many of the problems inherent to rural 
communities: lack of adult education, alcoholism, Foetal 
Alcohol Syndrome among infants, domestic violence and 
general unemployment which escalates on a seasonal 
basis. 

Franschhoek FM, the local community radio station, 
is attempting to address these problems through its 
programming, which includes a strong educational and 
cultural component. The station is very popular with the 
inhabitants of the valley, and reaches 120,000 listeners 
in English, Afrikaans and isiXhosa. 

Community radio stations have unique potential for positive 
impact because of their relevance to the communities 
they serve. The sustainability of Franschhoek FM is 
dependent on advertising and sponsorship of specific 
programmes by local businesses, government and 
individuals. In partnership with e.tv, the HCI Foundation 
donated R100 000 towards the substainability of this 
community radio station.

Development - Arts development

Arts and culture can be a
powerful medium for the delivery
of social messages..

Arts development



F o u n d a t i o n  A n n u a l  R e p o r t32

Empowerment of women

Mama Afrika
in partnership with Clover

Clover and HCI’s mutual commitment to social transformation has contributed to the successful development of a
three-year partnership with the Foundation. The project supports women who look after abused, abandoned, orphaned 
and HIV / Aids affected children as well as the elderly. Once they have joined the project, these humble, caring and 
compassionate women are affectionately referred to as “Mamas”. They are the points of call in times of dire need. 
They open their hearts to their communities, helping to protect, nurture and educate those who are most vulnerable.

This year, Clover Mama Afrika supported 23 Mamas in 23 communities countrywide. They collectively care for over 
6,500 children and more than 600 elderly people. In partnership with Clover, the Foundation contributed R700 000 
to support Mamas located in underprivileged communities. While the project has been honoured with awards, its most 
important accomplishment is the number of lives that it has eased and the many futures that it has helped to change 
for the better.

Mama Bahle: In Memorium

“Being part of Mama Afrika makes me very proud. The Mama Afrika family is continuing to grow and together
we are building a better country.”

 - Mama Bahle Ngcobo

Mama Bahle Ngcobo was the founder of the Bahle Care Centre that cares for more than 1,510 orphaned, abused and 
HIV/Aids affected children and 516 elderly people. Over the years Mama Bahle brought hope to the elderly of Umlazi 
by teaching them to help care for the young ones. Today there are 350 elderly members of the local community who 
continue the dedicated work that Mama Bahle started. Sadly Mama Bahle Ngcobo passed away on 16 June 2007.  Her 
legacy lives on.

Development - Community development

The empowerment of 
our nation’s women and 
youth is a prerequisite 
for reducing poverty and 
ensuring sustainable 
development.
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Mama Albertina Bloko

Through her Tyilulwazi Centre in Alexandria, Mama 
Albertina has been caring for disabled children and young 
adults since 2005. Her centre has played an important 
role in changing negative perceptions of disabled children 
within her local community.

Mama Veronica Gqmalana

Mama Veronica cares for 59 orphans at her centre, 
Njongozethu, which means ‘our aim’, situated just outside 
East London. She also counsels victims of HIV/Aids and 
runs a monthly soup kitchen for the elderly at local pension 
payout lines.

Mama Dawn Irons

Encouraging them with sports, arts and crafts, and 
assisting with their education, Mama Dawn cares for 47 
abused and orphaned children at her centre in the Valley of 
a Thousand Hills in KwaZulu-Natal.

Mama Glenrose Mashiqa 

Situated in East London in Mdantsane, Africa’s second 
largest township, Mama Glenrose’s centre cares for 62 
children every day while their parents are at work or looking 
for employment.

Mama Portia Mongake

Mama Portia started Abangani Enkosini in 1997 with the 
aim of challenging and eliminating community indifference 
to relevant local social issues. Situated in Alexandra, her 
centre cares for more than 320 orphans who have lost 
their parents to HIV/Aids.

Mama Dorah Tshabala

Although Mama Dorah never had the opportunity to go to 
school, her determination to learn motivated her to teach 
herself to read and write. She is the latest addition to the 
Mama Afrika sisterhood, caring for, feeding and teaching 
30 children between the ages of 6 months and 5 years at 
the Ncedisizwe Pre-School in Ikageng, Potchefstroom.

Development - Community development

Mama Dorah

Mama Portia

Mama Glenrose
Mama Dorah & Elaine Vlok

Mama Veronica Mama Dawn

Mama Albertina
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Empowerment of youth

Amy Biehl Foundation
in partnership with GABS

Amy Biehl Foundation programmes are designed to 
empower youth from impoverished communities and, as 
mechanisms for reducing the levels of crime and violence, 
to contribute to community upliftment.  

The Amy Biehl approach appeals to the creative talent 
naturally present within adolescents and young adults. 
Through the provision of educational and cultural activities 
such as music lessons that offer healthy alternatives to 
drugs and crime, the programme nurtures their potential 
to become future leaders and entrepreneurs in society.

In partnership with GABS, the HCI Foundation provides 
transport that enables approximately 3,000 youth to 
attend interactive educational programmes.

Konek
in partnership with Vukani
‘Konek— connecting the unconnected’

Through partnership with the City of Cape Town and the 
HCI Foundation’s contribution of R300 000 on behalf of 
Vukani, Konek has been able to roll-out its much needed 
social programmes to youth at risk.

Situated in the Cape Flats in Ottery, Western Cape, Konek 
provides various youth development and support services 
to 25 schools and more than 2,000 pupils who desperately 
need someone to support and believe in them. 

The overall aim of Konek is to ‘connect the unconnected’ 
- through sports, music activities and life-skills classes. 
Konek programmes also address social development 
through feeding schemes and community upliftment 
programmes; and enterprise development through life and 
skills training.

Development - Community development
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The right to adequate housing is regarded as a fundamental human right documented in the South African constitution 
and other internationally endorsed declarations. Despite this, the majority of South Africans reside in sub-standard 
conditions, with many living in settlements without access to basic services.  

The current challenge for South Africa is to maintain the focus on delivery of large numbers of housing units, as well as 
the creation of  human settlements that encompass a range of housing types and provide opportunities for employment 
and development.

Because housing encompasses all the different components that make up a living environment, the HCI Foundation’s 
housing programme aims to provide much more than a basic dwelling to those in need. By funding developments that 
combine private and communal space and provide access to facilities and opportunities which contribute positively to 
the living conditions of residents, the programme is designed to uplift communities and to facilitate local economic 
development.

“As the walls go up, so many more invisible walls come down
and new hope is built in the heart of the community.”
- Archbishop Desmond Tutu

Development - Housing development

Housing development
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Khulani Housing Project
The Khulani Housing Project is a partnership between the HCI Foundation, Ukhanyo Housing Development and Khulani 
Housing Association: KTC, Gugulethu, in the Western Cape.

KTC informal settlement was established during the late 1980s. The settlement is situated near Cape Town next to the 
N2 settlements that are part of the N2 Gateway project. KTC informal settlement was one of the first areas to benefit 
through the Service Land Project which was later known as the Integrated Services Land Project. 

The residents of KTC established the Khulani Housing Association in an effort to correct the problems that arose as a 
consequence of disappointments with former developers.

The HCI Revolving Housing Fund advanced funds amounting to over R3 million for a pilot housing project and a subsequent 
construction programme of 250 houses. An amount of R2.5 million of the advance will be used as a roll-over fund for 
the completion of the project.

The project is designed to go beyond addressing the housing development needs of the area, to empowering the people  
of KTC as they take responsibility for the future of their community.

Housing support centre
A housing support centre has been established. This is critical to ensure that the desired results are achieved. The 
centre has provided jobs for 6 local people who are employed to assist with ongoing site management. Once construction 
has been completed, the centre will be converted into an Early Childhood Development facility for children from the 
community.

Enterprise development
In partnership with Further Education and Training institutions and the Department of Labour, small enterprise opportunities 
will become available as a result of the construction taking place in the area.

Skills development
Through the extended public works programme, which is the cornerstone of government efforts in job creation, on-site 
construction skills training is provided for unemployed local labour. Opportunities for internships have also been made 
available to semi-skilled members of the community. 

Review: this year

Development - Housing development
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Construction of the houses
In August 2007 the HCI Foundation funded the construction of 10 demonstration houses. The two-bedroom houses are 
40 square metres in size, each with a bathroom, an open-plan kitchen and lounge. They are fully plastered, have tiled 
roofs, insulated ceilings, aluminium windows, gutters, electricity, and water heating. A launch was held on 26 September 
2007.

To mark the World Day for People with Disabilities on 3 November 2007, Mrs Nettie Ralasi, a disabled elderly member 
of the community of KTC was officially handed the keys to her house by the honourable Premier Rasool and Mr Dyantyi, 
the MEC for Housing and Local Government.

As part of the HCI Revolving Housing Fund, there are presently 43 housing units under construction in KTC.

Preview: next year
Through The HCI Revolving Housing Fund, the Foundation is facilitating the construction of 250 state subsidised houses 
in Gugulethu, Western Cape.

As the government continues to experience difficulty in the provision of housing on the requisite scale in the post 1994 
South Africa, people who do not have a proper roof over their heads feel an even greater sense of loss of dignity and 
alienation. The housing backlog, a critical social challenge, has been the cause of immeasurable pain and suffering to 
hundreds of thousands of people and is potentially a major destabilising factor within sprawling informal communities 
throughout the country.

An increased number of interventions in the area of housing are necessary to significantly improve the situation.
The HCI Foundation has commenced with support on a relatively small scale and intends to increase this for the number 
of houses provided next year.  As the programme progresses, we intend to seek partners that can assist us to realise 
this goal.

The right to adequate housing
is regarded as a fundamental
human right

Development - Housing development



F o u n d a t i o n  A n n u a l  R e p o r t38

“.. we try to make a difference
by continuing to respond to 
the health needs of poor and 
marginalised members of society”
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HealthHEALTH
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In the context of South Africa’s high levels of poverty together with the country’s HIV/Aids pandemic, the gravity of the 
health issues with which our nation is faced can seem overwhelming. However, through our HIV/Aids Programme and 
our ongoing contributions towards general health initiatives, we try to make a difference by continuing to respond to the 
health needs of poor and marginalised members of society.

HIV/Aids
The HCI Foundation is committed to ensuring that funds are channelled into those HIV/Aids organisations that have the 
capacity to respond adequately to the needs of people and communities infected and affected by the disease.

Infected people
Cotlands Baby Sanctuary
in partnership with GABS

In partnership with GABS, the HCI Foundation has 

supported Cotlands Hospice at the Helderberg Community 
Care Centre in the Western Cape since it opened in 2003. 
The Golden Arrow Nursery has 11 cots and is a temporary 
home for babies aged 1 to 3 years who are too ill to be 
cared for at home or in the community.  

Babies in the nursery receive antiretroviral treatment 
if necessary, and an individual care plan is developed to 
try to ensure their recovery. Although healthy babies are 
returned to their home or community, they continue to 
receive support through the Cotlands home-based care 
programme.  

In partnership with GABS, we contributed R100 000 towards 
the Cotlands Golden Arrow Nursery.

Haven Wellness Centre
in partnership with Vukani

The Haven Wellness Centre provides HIV/Aids palliative 
care and related community support facilities to residents 
of the suburbs of Buffalo Flats, Parkside, Pefferville, Duncan 
Village and Isiphunzana in the Eastern Cape.  

The centre provides vital health services to people from these 
communities who struggle with poverty, unemployment, 
crime and an excessively high prevalence of HIV/Aids and 
associated illnesses such as Tuberculosis.  

In partnership with Vukani, the HCI Foundation contributed 
a total of R132 000 to the centre to assist with monthly 
running costs.

Health - HIV/Aids

General
Health
27.9%

HIV/Aids
72.1%

“ The first wealth is health.”
– Ralph Waldo Emerson

Annual Spend Comparison: Health

Health Areas of Focus

F 2007
F 2008
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Affected people
One of the tragic social consequences of the HIV/Aids 
pandemic is the rising number of orphans and child-headed 
households nationally. With no option but to look after their 
younger siblings, members of such households struggle to 
meet their basic needs.

Community Action HIV/Aids Project
in partnership with e.tv

Dr Selma Browde trains community activists to educate 
local people about HIV/Aids prevention, good nutrition, care 
and treatment to try to eradicate the stigma associated 
with HIV/Aids. In partnership with e.tv, the Foundation 
contributed R180 000 towards this initiative.

Philippi Trust South Africa
‘Caring for children’

The extent of the recovery of children affected by HIV/Aids 
is strongly determined by how they cope with the emotional 
and psychological consequences of the disease. The Philippi 
Trust provides psychosocial support to HIV/Aids orphans 
and vulnerable children following the loss of one or both of 
their parents.  

   
The Trust’s Orphans and Vulnerable Children Project 
operates through four-day experiential learning camps 
at its permanent Mola Adventure Campsite in Somerset 
West, Cape Town. By teaching coping skills, and providing 
counselling and support, the Trust camps enhance 
children’s resilience, and help to restore their hope.  

The trust also trains volunteer counsellors in an effort to 
develop communities and to help them to ultimately help 
themselves. The Foundation contributed R50 000 towards 
the Philippi Trust Counsellor Training Programme.

Rock of Life
in partnership with Vukani

The Rock of Life delivers monthly food parcels to Aids 
orphans and child-headed households in rural communities 
in KwaZulu-Natal. Some of the areas receiving their aid 
are so remote that the parcels can only be delivered by 
wheelbarrow.  The HCI Foundation and Vukani Gaming 
donated R60 000 to assist with the purchase of food 
this year. The Foundation intends to continue to support 
this project on an ongoing basis and plans to increase its 
contribution next year.

Health - HIV/Aids
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General health
Notwithstanding its emphasis on the treatment of HIV/Aids, the HCI Foundation has tried hard not to neglect the needs 
of organisations and initiatives endeavouring to improve crucial public and community health services.

The Foundation contributed towards various general health organisations including R334 000 to the Moretele Sunrise 
Hospice, R250 000 to the Matlosana Hospice and R217 000 to SANTA.

1000 Hills Community Centre

The 1000 Hills Community Centre provides primary 
health care and social development to thousands of 
underprivileged residents of The Valley of 1000 Hills 
area near Pietermaritzburg in KwaZulu-Natal. The centre 
provides a health and wellness clinic for people infected 
with chronic illnesses such as HIV/Aids, TB, Hepatitis, 
Diabetes, Cancer, Arthritis and Hypertension.

In addition it runs a children’s development facility which has 
an extensive kitchen, bathrooms and educational amenities 
to provide food, clothing, respite and coaching for children 
who have lost their parents and are now living with relatives 
or care givers.

The clinic also provides primary health and home-based 
care for individuals and families within the community. The 
Foundation contributed R300 000 towards the building 
costs of the newly opened centre.

Khanya Family Centre

The Khanya Family Centre is a community clinic and wellness 
centre located in Katlehong, Gauteng. The centre provides 
psychological counselling, care and support services for 
children, adults and families experiencing life challenges, 
including those affected and infected by HIV/Aids.

    

It also facilitates the process of capacity building for community 
members to promote their own wellbeing and self-reliance. 
The Foundation contributed R200 000 towards the centre’s 
Wellness in the Workplace Programme. 

Lifeline Durban
‘You are not alone.’

Lifeline South Africa has nineteen affiliated community 
centres throughout South Africa, of which Lifeline Durban 
is one.  Lifeline provides people with 24-hour access to 
counselling facilities that include assistance for victims 
of rape, people infected and affected with HIV/Aids, and 
trauma counselling.

The HCI Foundation contributed R250 000 towards Lifeline
Durban’s outreach programme in “Clermont” and its 
community care project in Warwick Triangle Junction 
called “Ukuba Nesbindi”.  Lifeline Durban also has a crisis 
response team and runs counselling training skills courses 
for businesses, other welfare organisations and the 
broader community.

Health - General health

“...improve crucial public and 
community health services.”
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WelfareWELFARE
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Disability support
Among our contributions to organisations seeking to empower disabled South Africans were R300 000 to the United
Cerebral Palsy Association of South Africa, R50 000 to the Indigo Centre and R20 000 to the Thembinkosi Day Care 
Centre. 

Action for Blind and Disabled Children

Action teaches blind and disabled young people about computers and computer software, such as Microsoft Office Suite 
and related software programmes. The organisation provides basic and advanced computer skills training in order to 
enable students to reach the level of knowledge required to write Microsoft Accredited examinations. Action students 
are then equipped with the knowledge and the ability to secure gainful employment and become independent members 
of society. The HCI Foundation contributed R150 000 towards this proactive initiative.

Given the country’s historical structural imbalances, improving the lives of disabled and vulnerable South Africans is 
a pressing challenge. The HCI Foundation supported a number of developmental initiatives that aim to restore the 
independence and dignity of disabled and vulnerable people.

Welfare - Disability support

Vulnerable
67.2 %

Disabled
32.8%

“When you talk about diversity and inclusion, it really is just creating access to
opportunity for those who have generally been under represented and under-served ”
- Valerie E Patton

Annual Spend Comparison: Welfare

Welfare Areas of Focus

F 2007
F 2008
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Headway Gauteng

Headway is a centre and support group for brain injured 
people and their families. It is a recognised training 
institution by the Occupational and Speech Therapy 
Departments at Wits University who use its facility as a 
practical site for their students. Headway is also affiliated 
to the Wits Health Consortium for continued professional 
development for therapists.
 
Headway runs an holistic, fully-inclusive therapy day 
programme that helps brain injured members to feel 
accepted, comfortable and secure. It provides them with 
structured and stimulating productive activities under 
the supervision of fully trained therapists and volunteers 
from the community. Headway also runs a family support 
group for hundreds of families from diverse cultural and 
socio-economic backgrounds. Each family has someone 
dear to them living with a brain injury. The HCI Foundation 
contributed R81 000 to Headway.

Paarl School and Khayelitsha Centre

Paarl School has educated and cared for children with 
cerebral palsy, learning disabilities and physical disabilities 
since 1978. The school applies the mainstream school 
curriculum in smaller class groups, with an holistic 
educational team approach that includes the child’s 
educator, therapists and psychologists.

In addition to their pre-school to grade 9 classes, the school 
also teaches practical skills and employment preparation 
for young adults to help them cope with their disabilities 
and to be productive in the labour market.

Of the 330 learners who currently attend the school, 
160 are accommodated at the Paarl School hostel, which 
provides them with a loving and caring home.  The HCI 
Foundation contributed R10 000 towards the school’s 
Khayelitsha Centre outreach programme.

Woodside Sanctuary
in partnership with GABS

The Woodside Sanctuary provides specialised care for 
children and young adults with profound intellectual and 
physical disabilities through care and respite facilities.  
GABS has supported the Woodside Sanctuary for a 
number of years. With a contribution of R50 000, the HCI 
Foundation continued its support for a ward that cares for 
disabled children at the Woodside Sanctuary Special Care 
Centre.

Welfare - Disability support

...improving the lives of disabled 
and vulnerable South Africans
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Vulnerable support
The Foundation contributes towards shelters that care for destitute and homeless South Africans. It supports initiatives 
that assist the elderly, homes for abandoned children and orphans, feeding schemes, and rape crisis and domestic 
violence centres.
‘
Chief Cornerstone Children’s Home
in partnership with Formex

The Chief Cornerstone Children’s Home is situated in 
Korsten, Western Cape and houses more than 80  
children from the ages of 2 to 19 years who have been 
abandoned by their parents. The home also cares for  
more than 20 children in the local community. In partnership 
with Formex, the HCI Foundation contributed R100 000 
towards the home.

ICare Centre
in partnership with Southern Sun Hotels
‘Giving street kids a future’

ICare is a non-profit organisation devoted to finding 
meaningful and sustainable solutions to the challenge of 
street children in South Africa. The ICare Campaign for 
Street Children was launched in June 2002 by the LHC 
Foundation Trust, a registered South African Trust Fund. 
 
ICare raises funds and channels support for projects and 
non-profit organisations specifically focused on addressing 
the needs of street children through awareness, outreach, 
rehabilitation, housing, education and job creation.  
 
By working with outreach teams, ICare develops 
relationships to assist and support children to make the 
decision to leave the streets for good. Once a street child 
has willingly left the streets, ongoing support is provided for 
rehabilitation and to sustain positive change.  
 
ICare shelters and housing centres also enrol former 
street children in local schools and register them in custom 
education programmes that provide them with the skills 
to secure employment and take charge of their futures.
In partnership with Southern Sun Hotels, the HCI Foundation 
contributed R200 000 to the ICare Family Homes Project 
in KwaZulu-Natal.

Maranatha Streetworker’s Trust
in partnership with Formex

The Maranatha Streetworker’s Trust is a registered Non-
Profit Organisation working to help restore the dignity 
of children and adults on the streets of Port Elizabeth.
In partnership with Formex the HCI Foundation 
contributed R100 000 towards the Maranatha Trust’s 
Siyakatala Centre.  

For 15 years the centre has provided a place of refuge 
for destitute children and adults. The centre’s three 
primary programmes are a ‘drop-in’ 24-hour shelter for 
street children; a soup kitchen for the destitute; and a 
night shelter with three dormitories that provide some of 
the most vulnerable members of society with temporary 
respite from the harsh street life. 

The centre currently assists 184 street children and 
provides 2,098 meals per month to the destitute. It also 
tries to assist with their reintegration into the community 
through education and rehabilitation programmes.

Welfare - Vulnerable support

... contributes towards shelters that care for 
destitute and homeless South Africans
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Middelburg Care Village
in partnership with Vukani

Middelburg Care Village is a centre for abandoned 
children and orphans. The centre provides a safe, homely 
environment for children ranging in age from the  young 
children to young adults in high school.  

Most of the children at the centre have been placed there 
as a result of court order. One of the challenges the centre 
has been facing is intrusion from parents whose children 
have been removed from their care by the court.

In an effort to assist the centre, the HCI Foundation 
provided R332 000 in partnership with Vukani, in order 
for a security fence to be erected to ensure the children’s 
safety.

Oliver’s House
in partnership with Mettle

Oliver’s House is a non-profit organisation situated in
Benoni on the East Rand. The organisation funds and 
supports a children’s care centre, a feeding programme 
and an education centre.

The Nomthandazo Children’s Care Centre cares for more 
than 120 disadvantaged children aged 6 months to 6 years 
old from the Zenzele Informal Settlement in Daveyton.
7 of the children are physically or mentally challenged,
12 of the children are HIV positive, and many others have 
been orphaned as a result of HIV/Aids. In addition to 
providing the children with a home, the care centre also 
tries to ensure that all the children receive a meaningful 
education in their formative years.

The Zenzele Feeding Programme is an additional service 
provided at Nomthandazo Children’s Care Centre for the 
Zenzele local community. The Zenzele soup kitchen has 
been in operation since February 2003 and provides soup 
for up to 100 families per day. In partnership with Mettle, 
the HCI Foundation contributed R20 000 to the various 
programmes run and managed by Oliver’s House.

Welfare - Vulnerable support
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Applicant guidelines
PBO Status

The HCI Foundation is an approved Public Benefit Organisation (PBO)

Eligibility

In terms of its Trust Deed and its PBO status, the Foundation is only permitted to fund specific types of entities. These 
include other approved Public Benefit Organisations, associations of persons carrying on an approved Public Benefit 
Activity in South Africa, and departments of State or administration in the local, provincial or national sphere of the South 
African Government including municipalities and Section 21 (Not for Profit) Companies.
 
Criteria

The Foundation’s social spend will in future focus largely on supporting the principle and philosophy of sustainable social 
development in order to help bring about long term social change.
 
The Foundation will extend assistance to organisations that address the specific needs of a community and display the 
ability to deliver results. It aims to support organisations that do not duplicate the efforts of other initiatives in a given 
community, and that have the potential to become largely self-sustaining in the future.  
 
Applicant organisations should have the capacity for long-term, widespread impact through core function and demonstrate 
good governance through accountable administration and sound financial management and controls.
 
The Foundation will extend support to organisations that are responding to a specific need expressed by a given community; 
those that involve the community in key aspects of the project; and those that have the willingness and the ability to 
transfer education and skills to the community in a manner that is enabling and empowering.
 
Applications

Organisations wishing to apply for assistance from the HCI Foundation should submit an application in writing
together with their PBO letter of registration and/or NPO Certificate.

Application forms are available from the Foundation office.

 Physical Address

 2nd Floor
 Block A, Longkloof Studios
 Darters Street
 Gardens
 Cape Town
 8001

 Postal Address

 PO Box 4064
 Cape Town
 8000

 Telephone: 021 424 6010
 Fax:  021 424 6019
 Email: gjacobs@hcifoundation.co.za

 Registration No. IT1 408/93

Applicant  Guidelines
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Index of projects

Name  Province  Category 

1000 Hills  Community  Centre (Page 42) KZN Health
Abraham Kriel & Marie Kloppers Home Gauteng Education
Action For Blind & Disabled Children (Page 44) Gauteng Welfare
Agape School W/Cape Welfare
AKMK Children’s Home Gauteng Welfare
Amy Biehl Foundation (Page 34) W/Cape Development
Astra School For Learners W/Cape Welfare
Atlantis Harriers W/Cape Development
Atlantis Women’s Movement W/Cape Development
Baxter Theatre New Audience Project (Page 31) W/Cape Development
Bel Porto Foundation W/Cape Welfare
Bevies Care Centre KZN Education
Bonesa Khanya  Project Gauteng Education
Bonteheuwel Community Based Paralegal W/Cape Welfare
Cape Peninsula Organisation For Aged W/Cape Welfare
Cape Town Public Transport Museum (Page 31) W/Cape Development
Cape Town Society for the Blind W/Cape Welfare
Carehaven South Africa W/Cape Welfare
Carel Du Toit Trust W/Cape Welfare
Central District Methodist Church Gauteng Welfare
Centre for Early Childhood Development (Page 26) National Education
Chaeli Campaign W/Cape Welfare
Chere Botha School W/Cape Welfare
Chief Cornerstone Children’s Home (Page 46) E/Cape Welfare
Children In Distress Network: CINDI KZN Health
Choice Trust Limpopo Health
Community Action HIV/Aids Project (Page 41) Gauteng Health
Community Aids Response Care Gauteng Health
Community Women Action W/Cape Development
Cotlands Baby Sanctuary (Page 40) W/Cape Health
Cramond Food Parcels KZN Welfare
Delft Senior Community Workers W/Cape Health
Dopstop Association W/Cape Development
Dr GJ Joubert Primary School W/Cape Development
Education Alive W/Cape Education
Educational Toy Centre Creches KZN Education
Edu-peg (Page 28) National Education
Family Law Clinic Trust W/Cape Development
Family Reunion Centre W/Cape Welfare
Franschhoek FM Community Radio (Page 31) W/Cape Development
Free State Residential Care Centre F/State Welfare
Gender Advocacy Programme W/Cape Development
Girls & Boystown W/Cape Development
Go For Gold Foundation W/Cape Development
Golden Arrow Entertainers W/Cape Development
Golden United Football Club W/Cape Development
Grassroots Educare Trust (Page 26) W/Cape Development
Haloga MediSpa Laughter Yoga W/Cape Health
Haven Night Shelter W/Cape Welfare
Haven Wellness Centre (Page 40) E/Cape Health
Headway - Gauteng (Page 45) Gauteng Welfare
Heal the Hood W/Cape Development
Heaven’s  Shelter  House W/Cape Welfare
Hector Petersen High School E/Cape Education
Helderberg Hospice W/Cape Health
Helderberg Sports Club for the Disabled W/Cape Welfare
HIVSA - Camp Sizananai Life Skills Gauteng Health
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Name  Province  Category

Hosanna Soup Kitchen Gauteng Welfare
Hospice Matlosana North West Health
Huis EJ Appies: Steinkopf N/Cape Welfare
Human Rights Media Centre W/Cape Development 
ICare Centre (Page 46) KZN Welfare
Indigo Centre Gauteng Welfare
Jabulani Khakibos Kids Gauteng Welfare
Junior Traffic Training Centre Cape Town (Page 27) W/Cape Education
Junior Traffic Training Centre Randburg Gauteng Education
Khanya Family Centre (Page 42) Gauteng Health
Khanyisa School W/Cape Education
Khulani Housing Project (Page 36) W/Cape Development
Kingsmor Choir W/Cape Development
Konek (Page 34) W/Cape Development
Kwa-Thema Stimulation Centre Gauteng Welfare
Learn To Earn W/Cape Development
Lief & Leed W/Cape Welfare
Lifeline - Durban (Page 42) KZN Health
Lifeline - Pretoria Gauteng Health
Little Champs: Dinaledi Tse Nyane (Page 27) Gauteng Education
Logra Community Development W/Cape Development
Mama Afrika Project (Page 32) National Development
Manta Swimming Club W/Cape Development
Mapate HIV/Aids Project Limpopo Health
Maranatha Streetworker’s Trust (Page 46) E/Cape Welfare
Masakhane Youth Centre W/Cape Health
Masigcine Children’s Home W/Cape Welfare
Masilande Imveli Community Development W/Cape Development
Masincedane Community Service W/Cape Development
Matlosana Hospice Gauteng Health
MES Metro Evangelical Services Gauteng Welfare
Middelburg Care Village (Page 47) Gauteng Health
Mitchell’s Plain Network Opposing Women Abuse W/Cape Development
Moravian Church W/Cape Development
Moretele Sunrise Hospice North West Health
Morning Star Children’s Home F/State Health
Motherwell Soccer Association E/Cape Development
Multi-Purpose Talent Group W/Cape Development
Music Therapy Community Clinic W/Cape Development
NarcAnon W/Cape Development
Network Opposing Women Abuse W/Cape Development
NIAPA KZN Welfare
Nicro Gauteng Gauteng Welfare
Nicro Limpopo Limpopo Welfare
Nicro Mpumalanga Mpumalanga Welfare
Nicro National Office National Welfare
Nicro North West North West Welfare
Noncedo Nkqinta Adult Care Centre W/Cape Health
Oliver’s House (Page 47) Gauteng Welfare
Operation Hunger Gauteng Welfare
Operation Upgrade KZN KZN Development
Operation Upgrade Western Cape W/Cape Development
Orchid Seniors W/Cape Welfare
Oticon SA Gauteng Welfare
Overstrand Hospice W/Cape Health
Paarl School and Khayelitsha Centre (Page 45) W/Cape Welfare

Index of projects
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Index of projects

Name  Province  Category

Pakama Mfazi W/Cape Development
Pebbles Project (Page 28) W/Cape Education
Pepps Training Polokwane Education
Phambili VIP Bangane W/Cape Welfare
Phaphamani Home Based Care Mpumalanga Health
Phillipi Trust South Africa (Page 41) W/Cape Health
Prosperity Youth Centre W/Cape Health
Rachel Swart Fund W/Cape Welfare
Reygersdal Football Club W/Cape Development
Robertson House W/Cape Welfare
Rock of Life (Page 41) KZN Health
Rosen Castle Kiddies Campus (Page 28) W/Cape Education
Rotary Club of Pinelands W/Cape Development
SA Children’s Home W/Cape Welfare
SA Medical Foundation W/Cape Health
SA National Tuberculosis Association E/Cape Health
SA School Baseball Academy W/Cape Development
SABSA Winter Camp W/Cape Development
Salesian Institute W/Cape Development
Salvation Army Carehaven W/Cape Welfare
SANTA W/Cape Health
SASI: SA San Institute N/Cape Development
Save The Children Fund KZN Education
Sibanye W/Cape Development
Siyaphila Aids Support Services Limpopo Health
Society of Saint Vincent de Paul Gauteng Health
Somerset Hospital W/Cape Health
Sonitus School Gauteng Education
St. James Education Trust W/Cape Development
St. Luke’s Hospice W/Cape Health
St. Nicholas’ Children’s  Hospice F/State Health
Stellenberg High School W/Cape Development
Strandfontein Life Saving Club W/Cape Development
Susan la Porta Children’s Home W/Cape Welfare
Talfhani Independent School Mpumalanga Education
TEBA Development Gauteng Welfare
The Homestead W/Cape Welfare
The Upliftment Programme W/Cape Development
Thembinkosi Day Care Centre W/Cape Welfare
Three Cord Family Development W/Cape Development
Tygerberg Community Outreach Programme W/Cape Health
Ubuntu Self Help Educare Resource Centre North West Education
United Cerebral Palsy Association Gauteng Welfare
Vezokuhle Youth Development Project E/Cape Development
Victoria Service Centre for the Aged W/Cape Welfare
Vukuhambe Self Help Association W/Cape Welfare
Waterberg Welfare Society Limpopo Welfare
WC Blind Association W/Cape Welfare
Woodside Sanctuary (Page 45) W/Cape Welfare
Young One’s Youth Development W/Cape Development
Youth Channel Group Gauteng Health
Zanempilo W/Cape Health
Zishap Gauteng Welfare
Zwelitsha Assembly E/Cape Education
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PARTNERSHIPS WITH
HCI GROUP COMPANIES
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BSG Business Systems Group
“A contribution is more than just money; we seek to help 
develop self-sustainability and growth”

- Lungile Mdletshe, Manager: Strategy

BSG is involved in a number of activities to develop the IT 
industry, benefit the community and protect the environment. 
BSG runs a co-ordinated social responsibility programme 
that addresses the principal areas of Education, HIV/Aids 
and Skills Development. 

In an effort to raise awareness about the effects of HIV/
Aids, BSG participates in World Aids Day activities each 
year on 1 December. In association with the Tomorrow 
Trust, BSG’s World Aids Day Annual Paint Parties raise 
awareness about the pandemic and encourage South 
Africans to establish their HIV/Aids status by making use 
of free on-site mobile testing clinics.

BSG recruits actively on university campuses across the 
country. Throughout the year directors of BSG serve 
on a number of advisory boards including the Rhodes 
University Information Systems Faculty Board, Fort Hare 
University Information Systems Faculty Board and the Wits 
Information Systems (IS) Department Board in the School 
of Economic and Business Sciences.  

This allows for the management of BSG to make curriculum 
recommendations, to provide input on the quality of the 
graduates and their employability, to speak to classes and 
keep students up to date with industry-related issues and to 
expose students to practical business and IT work-related 
situations by offering them internships at BSG.

Clover
“The Mama Afrika project empowers women in their 
communities to empower the members of their 
communities.”

- Elain Vlok, Corporate Services Manager

Clover has adopted a conscious commitment to actively 
involve itself in the lives of the poor. Through the initial work 
of a task team led by Dr Elain Vlok, Clover Mama Afrika was 
launched in 2004 as a national social upliftment project to 
assist underprivileged communities.  

Based on the understanding that communities thrive when 
they are in control of their own wellbeing, Mama Afrika 
supports existing self-help projects attempting to improve 
the standard of living in communities.

Clover and HCI’s mutual commitment to social transformation 
has contributed to the successful development of our three 
year partnership (page 32).

The Mama Afrika project currently supports 23 Mamas in 
23 communities countrywide.

Partnerships with HCI Group companies

One of the Foundation’s priorities is to establish meaningful partnerships with subsidiary companies of the HCI Group, and 
to enhance their social projects. While existing joint inititiaves have continued to prosper, the Foundation entered into new 
partnerships with some of the subsidiary companies.  

The Foundation collaborated with subsidiary companies on key projects, and pursued partnership funding in order to 
increase the impact of the HCI group social spend and in so doing, positively impact on the lives of beneficiaries. 

In this section we report on some of the social investment activities of companies within the HCI group.

Partnerships with the HCI Group of companies
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e.tv
“We have a responsibility to invest in the community and 
to ensure that we use our brand to inform, educate and 
uplift South Africans.”

- Lamees Romaney, Head: Corporate Social Investment

Driven and sponsored by e.tv, a specific social development 
focus of the company is the training and empowerment 
of black documentary producers.  e.tv’s in-house team of 
programming experts evaluate proposals from emerging 
South African producers. Selected producers then receive 
budget and planning assistance with the production of their 
community development documentaries.

e.tv once again championed SACTWU’s SA Fashion Week 
initiatives through on-air promotions and inserts educating 
the public about the clothing industry.  

Joint projects undertaken by e.tv and the HCI Foundation 
include a unique early childhood development concept at 
the Rosen Castle Kids Activity Centre (page 28), and the 
Franschhoek Community Radio Station (page 31).

Golden Arrow Bus Services
“We recognise the need to reciprocate the custom 
derived from the communities which support the service 
we provide, with initiatives that address the social needs 
within these communities.”

- John Dammert, Corporate Development Manager, GABS 
and Trustee of the HCI Foundation.

As the largest public bus transport provider in the greater 
Cape Metropole, Golden Arrow Bus Services operates 945 
buses and plans to buy new buses that will enable it to 
provide an even greater service to the region.  

The Golden Arrow Foundation was formed in 1994 to help 
improve the circumstances of disadvantaged commuters.  
Following the HCI Group’s acquisition of GABS, in 2005 the 
Golden Arrow Foundation was incorporated into the HCI 
Foundation.  

The HCI Foundation has continued to support a number of 
worthy initiatives that had previously been assisted through 
the Golden Arrow Foundation.  Consequently bus transport 
forms a significant part of the assistance that the HCI 
Foundation provides to communities in the Western Cape.  

Joint GABS and HCI Foundation projects include initiatives 
undertaken through the bus flagship programme and 
the ad hoc educational bus discount programme.  The 
partnership with GABS also includes the HCI Foundation’s 
ongoing investment in the Woodside Sanctuary (page 45) 
and the Cotlands Golden Arrow Nursery (page 40).  

In recognition of the Golden Arrow Bus Services’ role in 
the City of Cape Town’s Public Transport Heritage, the HCI 
Foundation is working towards the establishment of the 
Cape Town Public Transport Museum (page 31).

Partnerships with HCI Group companies
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HCI Khusela Coal
“HKC is committed to mining in a way that reduces its 
footprint on the environment and on the communities 
surrounding its mines. Responsible and sustainable 
mining is vital to the company.”

- Fleur Honeywill, Chief Executive Officer

HKC has been granted mining authorisations for two of 
its operations, Palesa and Mbali.  The company has 
commenced mining activities in compliance with the Mineral 
and Petroleum Resources Development Act and the Mining 
Charter on Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment.  

In terms of the mine’s social and labour plans, a total of 
four projects have been committed to, which are aimed 
at community development and upliftment. HKC mines will 
manage their own projects in public/private partnerships.

Noah Financial Innovation
“It’s about the possibility of a new generation of South 
Africans, who do things differently and want to make a 
difference, coming together.”

- Julie Kotton: Marketing and Communications Manager

In 2003 Noah launched Broking for Good, its flagship social 
responsibility initiative that draws the asset management 
community together in an annual bid to raise funds for 
various community and charity organisations. Through 
this initiative, Noah has been able to demonstrate its 
commitment to social development.  

The South African Social Investment Exchange (SASIX) is a 
GreaterGood South Africa initiative, supported in part by the 
Broking for Good Foundation.  SASIX emulates the traditional 
stock exchange by connecting non-profit organisations 
requiring funds for specific social development projects 
with “investors” (corporate donors, trusts, foundations and 
the general public) who want to support social development 
in South Africa. In 2007 R2.5 million was distributed to a 
range of non-profit organisations listed on SASIX.

Partnerships with HCI Group companies
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Syntell
“By contributing to community development initiatives 
and employment creation, Syntell takes its responsibility 
to society seriously.”

- Sammy Sheldon, Syntell Foundation Officer

The Syntell Foundation was created to spearhead Syntell’s 
social responsibility efforts. Each year a percentage of profit 
is allocated to the Syntell Foundation for contribution to 
qualifying social projects. Syntell invests in a range of social 
responsibility initiatives including community development 
activities and employment creation projects.

The Khayelitsha block making project is one of the 
entrepreneurial development programmes supported by the 
Syntell Foundation. By training women from the community 
how to make cement blocks for houses, during the last 
year the project has equipped 15 unemployed women with 
the means to start their own businesses. 

The project is a joint venture between Syntell, the 
Department of Social Services and Megamix. Syntell staff 
provided business support and advice on business plan 
preparation, inventory management, procurement and 
basic financial management. The project will continue to 
receive support from the Syntell Foundation for the next 
five years until it is self-sustaining.

In Ekurhuleni, Syntell supports the Metropolitan 
Municipality’s Demilitarisation Programme, which provides 
ex-combatants with life skills and qualifications. In addition 
to financial support, Syntell has pledged to create work 
experience opportunities and to employ some learners who 
complete the course.  

Syntell supported a beadwork income generation project 
for women living with HIV/Aids at Masiphumelele in 
Cape Town. Syntell also helped a school at Park Rennie 
in KwaZulu-Natal to raise funds for an assembly shelter, 
and Syntell’s foundation produced a safety pamphlet that 
was handed out to nearly 2,000 pupils at 4 schools during 
Electricity Awareness Week.

The HCI Foundation partnered with Syntell to open the 
Syntell Road Safety Training Centre (page 27). The centre 
is a road safety initiative for young learners, in partnership 
with the city of Cape Town and its traffic department. The 
training centre is equipped to empower 24,000 learners 
from 200 schools annually.

Partnerships with HCI Group companies
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Tsogo Sun Group

“By contributing to the improvement of people’s lives, we are improving the environment in which our business 
operates. It makes perfect sense.”

- Vusi Dlamini, Group HR Director

Tsogo Sun Gaming
The company’s key area of focus is on children affected or 
infected with HIV/Aids, as well as on poverty alleviation and 
wellness programmes related to the disease. This includes 
integration with Tsogo Sun Gaming’s wellness programme 
and employee involvement. Emphasis is given to projects 
with the potential to improve or enhance the quality of life 
of people, particularly the health and emotional wellbeing 
of children.  

In each of the cities in which Tsogo Sun Gaming has a 
presence, namely Durban, Nelspruit, Witbank, East London 
and Johannesburg, as the primary recipients of its social 
investment, the company has elected to support selected 
registered children’s villages, shelters, orphanages and 
homes  that house between 10 and 20 children.  

In this way Tsogo Sun Gaming sees itself as a partner that 
is fully integrated into the system of how children’s lives are 
changed and managed within chosen homes and places 
of safety.

Southern Sun Hotels
With Southern Sun Hotels having contributed nearly  

R9 million to various compliant organisations nationally 
this year, through its social responsibility programme, the 
company is dedicated to making a positive impact within 
the communities in which it operates.

Southern Sun focuses its social spend on education, 
health, welfare and the environment.  One of its key 
national partnership projects is with the Feedback Food 
Redistribution Programme, which collects excess food from 
hotels and restaurants and redistributes it to communities 
in need.  In 2007 Southern Sun Hotels donated 35,343kg 
of food (117,810 meals with a value of nearly R1 million) to 
underprivileged communities throughout the country.

Through the company’s Adopt-A-Guesthouse programme, 
Southern Sun Hotels has also concentrated a significant 
proportion of spend on Enterprise Development, with 
specific emphasis on the empowerment of women within 
the Tourism industry in South Africa.

As the first two partnership initiatives with Southern Sun, 
the HCI Foundation contributed R250 000 towards Little 
Champs (page 27) and R200 000 to ICare (page 46).

Partnerships with the HCI Group of companies

In addition to overseeing the Group’s operating companies corporate social responsibility programmes, Tsogo Sun Group 
contributes towards various social development initiatives, including Business Against Crime and the Worldwide Fund for 
Nature (WWF). The primary programmes in which the Tsogo Sun Group is involved, however, are managed through its 
two operating companies.
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Vukani Gaming Corporation
We contribute as much as possible to help improve 
provincial infrastructure, develop small business, create 
jobs and empower previously disadvantaged members of 
the communities in which we operate.”

- Sydney Ramasodi: Compliance Manager

The Vukani Group, a wholly owned subsidiary of HCI, is the 
largest route operator in South Africa, being the only route 
operator which is licensed in all the five currently operating 
provinces, namely Mpumalanga, Western Cape, Eastern 
Cape, KwaZulu-Natal and Limpopo. 
 
Vukani was awarded Route Operator licenses due to its 
industry knowledge and strong participation in social 
welfare development programmes directly benefiting the 
communities in which it operates.  
 
As part of its commitment to social development, in 
partnership with the HCI Foundation, Vukani supports 
a range of health, welfare and education initiatives.
These include the Haven Wellness Centre (page 40),
Konek (page 34), Middelburg Care Village (page 47), the
Pebbles Project (page 28), the Rock of Life (page 41),
and the SACTWU Edu-Peg Early Childhood Development
Project (page 28).

YFM
“We mobilise the hearts and minds of our caring listeners 
to help us make a difference.”

- Sandile Gumede,HR Manager

Y-Cares is the Social Responsibility arm of YFM. Through 
Y-Cares, the company tries to make a difference in the 
lives of those less fortunate.

One of Y-Cares’ initiatives this year was the winter clothing 
collection campaign. In addition to donating the collected 
clothing to Streetwise Pretoria, Joe Slovo Squatter Camp, 
African Children’s Feeding Scheme and Elsie De Kock Soup 
Kitchen, the campaign raised awareness for the plight of 
the underprivileged and homeless through airtime valued 
at R900 000.

YFM’s new Y-Academy is an ambitious training and 
development programme for young South Africans. It 
is an intensive six-month programme that delivers new 
recruits into the heart of the radio station’s operations.  
YFM spent R400 000 on the Academy’s first intake of 
students this year.

Partnerships with the HCI Group of companies
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Trustees of the HCI Foundation   

To the trustees of The HCI Foundation     

We have audited the accompanying annual financial statements of The HCI Foundation, which comprise the trustees’ 
report, the balance sheet as at 31 March 2008, the income statement, the statement of changes in equity and cash 
flow statement for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set 
out on pages 65 to 75.

Trustees’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The trust’s trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements in 
accordance with the basis of accounting as set out in the accounting policies to the financial statements. This responsibility 
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and 
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the annual financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entityís preparation and fair presentation of the 
annual financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the trustees, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the trust 
at 31 March 2008, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the 
basis of accounting as set out in the accounting policies to the financial statements.

PKF (Cpt) Inc.

Chartered Accountants (S.A.)

Registered Auditors

(Reg. no. 2000/016512/21)

(IRBA no. 913596E)

08 July 2008
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Trustees’ Responsibilities and Approval     
The trustees are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of 
the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure 
that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the trust as at the end of the financial year and 
the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with the basis of accounting as set 
out in the accounting policies to the financial statements. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent 
opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting as set out in the accounting 
policies to the financial statements and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported 
by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.

The trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established 
by the trust and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the trustees to 
meet these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a 
cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, 
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls 
are monitored throughout the trust and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring 
the trustís business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of 
risk management in the trust is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the 
trust. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the trust endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate 
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and 
constraints.

The trustees are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of 
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the 
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not 
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The trustees have reviewed the trustís cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2009 and, in the light of this review 
and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the trust has or has access to adequate resources to continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Although the board are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the trust, they are supported by the trust’s 
external auditors.

The external auditor are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the trust’s annual financial statements. 
The annual financial statements have been examined by the trust’s external auditors and their report is presented on 
page 63.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 65 to 75, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the board on 08 July 2008 and were signed on its behalf by:

   
Trustee   Trustee 

Cape Town
08 July 2008
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Trustees’ Report
The trustees submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2008.

1. Review of activities

 Main business and operations 

 There has been no major change in the nature of the business. The Trust remains a charitable trust to act and 
 serve as a charitable institution of a public character.

 The operating results and state of affairs of the trust are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements
 and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

2. Events after the balance sheet date

 The trustees are not aware of any matter or circumstance occurring between the balance sheet date and the
 date of this report that materially affects the results of the trust for the year ended 31 March 2008 or the
 financial position at that date.

3. Trustees

 The trustees of the trust during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:
  
 Name Changes 
 Mr PJ Abrahams   

 Mr J Copelyn   

 Ms VM Engel   

 Mr M Golding   

 Mr M Jacobson Resigned 11 December 2007  

 Mr VE Mphande   

 Prof. M Tshabalala   

 Ms M Nkonyane   

 Ms MM May Resigned 11 December 2007  

 Mr Y Shaik Appointed 11 December 2007  

 Mr K Govender Appointed 11 December 2007  

 Mr J Dammert Appointed 11 December 2007 
 
4. Auditors

 PKF (Cpt) Inc. will continue in office for the next financial period.
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Balance Sheet

Figures in Rand Notes 2008 2007

Assets

Non-current assets  436 229 567 355 294 240

Plant and equipment 2 231 271 258 780 
Investments 3 435 998 296 355 035 460 

  

Current assets  59 378 620 76 094 553

Trade and other receivables 4 458 842 744 075 
Cash and cash equivalents  58 919 778 75 350 478 

  

Total assets  495 608 187 431 388 793

  

Equity and liabilities    

Equity    
Trust capital 5 483 576 805 428 127 827

   

Liabilities    

Non-current liabilities    
Other financial liabilities 6 2 534 000 1 078 389

   

Current liabilities  9 497 382 2 182 577 
Trade and other payables 9 2 705 502 206 066 

Provisions 7 6 791 880 1 976 511

  

Total liabilities  12 031 382 3 260 966

Total equity and liabilities  495 608 187 431 388 793 
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Net investment income  10 288 443      8 681 231 
Interest received 8 850 345      7 629 247
Dividends received 3 544 301      2 411 921
Investment administration fee (2 106 203)   (1 359 937)

  

Other income 79 220 304 106 058 322 
Sundry income - 73 211
Fair value adjustment 79 220 304  105 985 111
    

Total income 89 508 747 114 739 553

Expenses 34 059 769 16 249 183 
  
Operating expenses    5 819 984  3 620 727
  
Project expenses 28 239  785    12 628 456
Bursaries 10 968 949  6 124 846
Bus discounts     655 476    770 241
Discretionary fund 115 159  21 372
General education 600 500  -
General health 300 000  -
HIV/Aids 3 262 952  -
Housing 3 143 123  -
Partnerships 4 254 128  -
Other project expenses 4 939  498  5 711 997
 

 
  
Surplus for the year 55 448 978  98 490 370

  

Financial Statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Figures in Rand   Trust Capital

Balance at 01 April 2006   329 637 456

Total changes    98 490 371  

Surplus for the year    98 868 395

Prior period error (refer to note 12 of the financial statements)   (378 024)

  

Balance at 01 April 2007   428 127 827

Changes in equity       

Surplus for the year    55 448 978

Balance at 31 March 2008   483 576 805

Note   5

  

Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand Notes 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash used in operations 10 (14 615 608) (5 448 532)

Finance costs  (220) (264)

Net cash from operating activities  (14 615 828) (5 448 796) 

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of plant and equipment 2 (72 340) (247 323)

Purchase of investments  (1 742 532) (1 925 089)

Net cash from investing activities  (1 814 872) (2 172 412) 

Total cash movement for the year  (16 430 700) (7 621 208)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  75 350 478 82 971 686

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  58 919 778 75 350 478
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Accounting Policies
1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting as set out in notes 
1.1 to 1.6. The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and incorporate the 
principal accounting policies set out below. These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

 The Trust
The trust was formed in terms of a Trust Deed  and initial subject matter being  a donation, by  Golden  
Arrow  Bus  Services (Pty) Ltd, dated 14 October 1993. The trust is a charitable trust to act and serve 
as a charitable institution of a public character.

The Trust Deed has been amended by approval of more than two thirds of trustees to change the trust’s name to  
The HCI Foundation, formerly The Golden Arrow Foundation. The trust’s objectives has been amended accordingly  
to ensure compliance with the provisions of section 30 of the Income Tax Act 58 of 1962 and to effect certain  
other changes.

1.1 Significant judgements

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information 
and the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ 
from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

 Trade Receivables

 The trust assesses its trade receivables for impairment at each balance sheet date. In determining whether
 an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the trust makes judgements as to whether
 there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

 Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional 
disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note 7 - Provisions.

1.2 Plant and equipment 
The cost of an item of plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the trust; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of 
an item of plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

 Plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
 Item  Average useful life
 Furniture and fixtures  6 years
 Motor vehicles  5 years
 IT equipment  3 years
 Computer software  3 years
 Leasehold improvements  1 year

 The residual value and the useful life of each asset are reviewed at each financial period-end.

 The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount
 of another asset.

 The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or
 loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
 equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Financial Statements



F o u n d a t i o n  A n n u a l  R e p o r t70

1.3 Financial instruments

 Initial recognition
Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank balances, investments, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables. These financial instruments are disclosed at fair value, unless otherwise 
stated.Refer to note 11 to the annual financial statements for the financial risk management policies of financial 
instruments.

 Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active 
(and for unlisted securities), the trust establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of 
recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash 
flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on 
entity-specific inputs.

 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecove able amounts are 
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognised 
is measured as the difference between the assetís carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.

 Held for trading financial assets
Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment 
is Investments are measured initially and subsequently at fair value, gains and losses arising from changes in fair 
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

1.4 Provisions and contingencies
 Provisions are recognised when:
 • the trust has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
 • it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;  
 and
 • a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and
measured as a provision.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.

1.5 Revenue

 Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
 Dividends are recognised when the last date to register for the dividend has passed.

1.6 Investments

 Investments held with respective financial institutions that constitute investments in unit trusts, which represents
 the Foundation’s contractual right to receive cash or other assets have been designated as Fair Value financial assets
 through profit and loss. The increase in the fair value of these assets are therefore recognised in the income statement. 
 
 Investments that constitute ownership of equity instruments in another entity are also classified as Fair Value
 through profit and loss financial assets with fair value movements recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand    

 
2. Plant and equipment

   2008   2007

  Cost/ Accumulated Carrying Cost/ Accumulated Carrying
  Valuation depreciation value Valuation depreciation value

Furniture and fixtures 46 630 (26 198) 20 432 46 630 (20 625) 26 005 
Motor vehicles 152 551 (33 816) 118 735 152 551 (3 305) 149 246 
Office equipment 961 (440) 521 961 (280) 681 
IT equipment 189 583 (105 151) 84 432 117 243 (56 502) 60 741 
Computer software 20 992 (13 841) 7 151 20 992 (5 800) 15 192 
Leasehold improvements 13 830 (13 830) - 13 830 (6 915) 6 915

Total 424 547 (193 276) 231 271 352 207 (93 427) 258 780 
 

Reconciliation of plant and equipment ‑ 2008
      
   Opening Additions Depreciation Total  
   Balance

Furniture and fixtures  26 005 - (5 573) 20 432 
Motor vehicles  149 246 - (30 511) 118 735 
Office equipment  681 - (160) 521 
IT equipment  60 741 72 340 (48 649) 84 432 
Computer software  15 192 - (8 041) 7 151 
Leasehold improvements  6 915 - (6 915) -
   258 780 72 340 (99 849) 231 271
  
      
Reconciliation of plant and equipment ‑ 2007

   Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Total 
   Balance

Furniture and fixtures  23 509 9 017 - (6 521) 26 005 
Motor vehicles  26 000 152 551 (26 000) (3 305) 149 246 
Office equipment  841 - - (160) 681 
IT equipment  24 804 56 733 - (20 796) 60 741 
Computer software  1 128 15 192 - (1 128) 15 192 
Leasehold improvements  - 13 830 - (6 915) 6 915
   76 282 247 323 (26 000) (38 825) 258 780 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand    2008 2007

 

3. Investments   
 
 At fair value through profit or loss   
 Listed shares 345 150 000 271 575 000 
 Unit trusts 90 848 296 83 460 460
  435 998 296 355 035 460 
   
 The trust held investments in the following companies:
   
 Listed:   
 (Number of ordinary shares) - - 
 Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited 4 500 000 4 500 000
  4 500 000 4 500 000 
 
4. Trade and other receivables  

 Deposits 40 152 16 917 
 VAT 35 339 26 793 
 Accrued income 383 351 700 365
  458 842 744 075 

5. Trust capital  
  
 Initial subject matter: Donation made by Golden Arrow Bus
   Services (Pty) Ltd 1 000 1 000 
 on 13 October 1993   
 Transferred to Trust Capital (1 000) (1 000)
  - - 

 Capital account / Trust capital   
 Balance at beginning of year 428 127 827 329 637 456 
 Net profit for the year 55 448 978 98 868 395 
 Prior period error (refer to note 12) - (378 024)
  483 576 805 428 127 827 

  The Trust Capital shall comprise the initial donation and any net revenue of the Trust which has not been expended
 in the furtherance of the Trust Objectives. 

 As per clause 21 of the 2nd addendum to the Trust Deed, the Trustees shall be entitled at any time and from
 time to time to distribute the whole or any part or parts of the capital of the Trust in fulfillment of the Trust
 Objectives as the Trustees shall in their sole and entire discretion determine.
 
 As per clause 23 of the 2nd addendum to the Trust Deed, any gains which may occur consequent upon a sale of
 any assets of the Trust, shall not be distributed as income, but shall be treated as capital.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand    2008 2007

 
6. Other financial liabilities  
    
 At fair value through profit or loss    
 Long term employees benefits 2 534 000 1 078 389 

 
On 5th December 2006, the Trust had resolved 
to grant share options to certain of its employees 
to acquire 83,500 HCI shares collectively from the 
Trust at a price of R40.50 per share substantially 
in accordance with the terms of the HCI Employee 
Share Scheme. These options are exercisable over 
a seven year period and accordingly vest over this 
period. Options outstanding at 31 March 2008 
totaled 70,000 shares (2007: 70,000 shares) and 
no options lapsed due to employee leaving during the 
year (2007: 13,500 shares). 

 
Non ‑current liabilities
At fair value (fair value adjustments through profit 
and loss) 2 534 000 1 078 389 

 
7. Provisions

 Reconciliation of provisions ‑ 2008
       
  Opening Additions Utilised Total  
  Balance  during
    the year

 Onerous contract - 289 335 - 289 335  
 Bursaries 1 976 511 6 502 545 (1 976 511) 6 502 545

  1 976 511 6 791 880 (1 976 511) 6 791 880  
 

The trust is moving from its leased premises.The 
lease is non-cancellable and the lease continues for 
the next 2 years. The trust currently cannot find a 
lessee to occupy the premises.

     
8. Taxation

The HCI Foundation is exempt from income tax in  
terms of section 10(1)(cN) of the Income Tax Act.

     
9. Trade and other payables 
     
 Trade payables 115 001 158 385 
 Accrued leave pay 52 702 47 681 
 Accrued bonus 37 799 - 
 Accruals - housing project 2 500 000 -
  2 705 502 206 066 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand    2008 2007

 
10. Cash used in operations  
   
 Surplus before taxation 55 448 978 98 490 370
 
 Adjustments for:   
 Depreciation and amortisation 99 849 38 825 
 Deficit on sale of assets - 26,000 
 Finance costs 220 264 
 Fair value adjustments (79 220 304) (105 985 111) 
 Movements in provisions 4 815 369 1 976 511 
 Increase in long term employee benefits 1 455 611 1 078 389 
 Changes in working capital:   
 Trade and other receivables 285 233 (639 801) 
 Trade and other payables 2 499 436 (433 979)
  (14 615 608) (5 448 532)
    
11. Related parties  
  

Relationships
    

J Copelyn
J Copelyn, a trustee of the Foundation and Chief Executive Officer 
of Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited, and a company 
in which he has an indirect beneficial interest, have collectively 
donated 4 million HCI shares to the Foundation in prior years.

M Golding
A company in which M Golding, a trustee of the Foundation and 
Chairman of Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited, has an 
indirect beneficial interest, has donated 500,000 HCI shares to 
the Foundation in prior years.

Golden Arrow Bus Services (Pty) Ltd
The HCI Foundation seeks to support the aged, educational 
excursions and other, by way of subsidising transport costs for 
services provided by Golden Arrow Bus Services (Pty) Ltd, a 
subsidiary of Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited.

 Related party transactions
   
  
 Bus Discounts subsidised   
 Golden Arrow Bus Services (Proprietary) Limited 601 834 770 241 

Partnership agreements
During the year the Foundation entered into various partnership 
agreements, with subsidiaries of HCI Ltd, to fund certain charitable 
projects. These projects are funded partly by the subsidiary and 
partly by the Foundation. No transactions between these related 
parties took place during the year.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand    2008 2007

 

12. Prior period error
Interest and Dividends received and accounted for in the 
current year had in fact been declared on 30 March 
2007.

The long term employee benefits per note 6 were not 
recognised in the prior year.

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as 
follows:

 
 Balance sheet    
 Accrued income 700 365 700 365 
 Other financial liabilities (1 078 389) (1 078 389) 
 Opening retained earnings 378 024 - 
     
 Income statement    
 Interest received - (226 173) 
 Dividends received - (474 192) 
 Employee costs - 1 078 389
 
13. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified. 
Accrued leave pay has been reclassified from Provisions 
in the prior year to Trade payables in the current year. The 
reclassification has no impact on the Income Statement. 
 
Accrued bursaries has been reclassified from Trade 
payables in the prior year to Provisions in the current 
year. The reclassification has no impact on the Income 
Statement.

The effects of the reclassification are as follows:
    
 Balance sheet    
 Trade payables - accrued leave pay - (47 681) 
 Trade payables - accrued Bursaries - 1 976 511 
 Provisions - (1 928 830)
 
14. Risk management

 Liquidity risk
 The trust has minimised it’s liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and
 ensuring that it has adequate banking facilities and borrowing capacity.
 
 Credit risk
 The trust only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing.
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Physical Address

2nd Floor Longkloof Studios
Darters Street
Gardens
Cape Town
8001
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PO Box 4064
Cape Town
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Telephone: 021 - 424 6010
Fax: 021 - 424 6019
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